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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Honorable Gilbert Gonzales, Mayor
Members of the Board of Commissioners
City of Raymondville, Texas

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Oplnions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Raymondville, Texas, as of and for the
vear ended September 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City
of Raymendviile, Texas® basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Tn our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the governmenta! activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the City of Raymondville, Texas, as of September 30, 2024, and the respective changes in financial
position, and, cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our andit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govermmnent Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of
the City of Raymondville, Texas and to meet our cther ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or esror,

In preparing the financial stalements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City of Raymondville, Texas’s ability to continue
as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information
that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Aunditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statemenis

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s repoit that includes our opinions.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not abscluie assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a4 material misstatement resulting from




fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve coliusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based
on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards,
we:

»  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining,
on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,

e  Obtain an understanding of internal controf relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
City of Raymondville, Texas’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

«  FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements,

s Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the City of Raymondville, Texas’s ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control~related matters that we identified
during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion
and analysis and required supplementary information on pages 6-11, and 52-57 be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although net a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing
the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements, We do
not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the City of Raymondville, Texas® basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.8, Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cos{ Principles,
and Andit Requirements for Federal Awards, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required
part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
related directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the audiiing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used lo prepare the basic financial statements or the basic financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underiying accounting
and oiher records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial stalements themselves, and
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
In our opinion the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to
the basic financial statements as a whole.




Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Stendards, we have also issued our report dated April 7, 2025, on our
consideration of the City of Raymondville, Texas’ internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with cerlain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance
and the resulis of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial repoiting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Siandards
in considering the City of Raymondville, Texas’ internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Roberto Lopey

Roberto Lopez, CPA PC

Harlingen, Texas
April 7, 2025
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CITY OF RAYMONDVILLE, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT?’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Our discussion and analysis of the City of Raymondville’s financial performance provides an
overview of the City’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2024. Please
read it in conjunction with the City’s basic financial statements.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The government-wide financial
statements include the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities. These provide
information about the activities of the City as a whole and represent a long-term view of the
City’s property, obligations, and other financial matters. They reflect the flow of total
economic resources in a mannet similar to the financial reports of a business enterprise.

Fund financial statements report the City’s operations in more detail than the government-wide
statements by providing information about the City. For governmental activities, these
statements tell how services were financed in the short-term, as well as what resources remain
for future spending. They reflect the flow of current financial resources and the non-
appropriated budget.

The notes to the financial statements provide narrative explanations or additional data needed
for full disclosure in the government-wide statements of the fund financial statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Governmental (ype funds

The governmental type assets of the City and deferred outflows exceeded its liabilities

and deferred inflows at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $13,734,097 (net

position). Of this amount $7,384,916 (unrestricted net position) may be used to meet
the City’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

- The City’s total net position increased by $2,305,138.

- As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental fund reported
combined ending fund balances of $6,155,130 an increase of $1,557,925 in comparison
with the prior year. $4,632,125 is available for spending at the City’s discretion
(unassigned fund balance).

- The business-type assets and deferred outflows of the City exceeded its fiabilities and
deferred inflows at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $8,766,015 (net position).
Of this amount $(151,133) (unrestricted net position) may be used to meet the business-
type activities obligations.

- The net position decreased by $566,560.




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
September 30, 2624

REPORTING THE CITY AS A WHOLE

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities

The analysis of the City’s overall financial condition and operations begins on page 12. Its
primary objective is to show whether the City is better off or worse off as a result of the year’s
activities. The Statement of Net Position includes all the City’s assets and liabilities while the
Statement of Activities includes all the income and expenses generated by the City’s operations
during the year, These apply the accrual basis of accounting, which is the same methos used
by most private sector companies.

All of the current year’s income and expenses are taken into account regardiess of when cash
is received or paid. All the City’s assets are reported whether they serve the current or future
years. Liabilities are considered whether they must be paid in the current or future years,

These two statements report on the City’s net position and changes in them. The City’s net
position (the difference between assets and liabilities) provides one measure of the City’s
financial health or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the City’s net
position are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating, To
assess fully overall health of the City; however, you should consider nonfinancial factors as
well, such as the condition of the City’s facilities.

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, the City has two kinds of
activities.

Governmental Activities — The City’s basic services are reported here, including operating,
maintenance and general. Ad valorem taxes, sales and franchise taxes, and used fees finance
these activities.

Business-Type Activities — The City charges a fee to customers to help it cover all or most of
the cost of certain services it provides, The City’s water and sewer systems are repotted here.
User fees for water and sewer operations finance these activities.

REPORTING THE CITY'S GOVERNMENTAL FUND

Govermmnenital Fund — The City reports its basic services in a governmental fund, This fund
uses modified accrual accounting (a method that measures the receipt and disbursement of cash
and all other financial assets that can be readily converted to cash), and they report balances
that are available for future spending. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed
short-term view of the Cily’s general operations and the basic services it provides. We describe
the differences between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and
the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds in the notes to the basic financial
statements,




MANAGEMENT*S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
September 30, 2024

Business-Type Funds (Proprietary) — When the City charges customers for the services it
provides, these services are generally reported in the proprietary fund. Proprietary funds are
reported in the same way that all activities are reported in the Statement of Net Position and
the Statement of Activities. In fact, the City’s proprietary fund is the same as the business-type
activities we reported in the government-wide statements but provide more detail and
additional information, such as cash flows. The City reports its utility services in a business
type fund. This fund uses the accrual basis of accounting.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCTAL ANALYSIS

Our analysis and tables below, focus on the net position and changes in net position of the
City’s governmental and business-type activities. Changes in net position over time may serve
as a useful indicator of a government’s financial health and condition.

The City’s combined net position at September 30, 2024, increased from $20,838,120 to
$22,500,112, an increase of $1,738,579,

On September 30, 2024, the prior year’s Net Position of the City’s governmental activities of
$11,556,142, increased by $2,305,138 to $13,734,097 and included a $5,728,024 net
investment in capital assets, net of related debt, $621,157 restricted for special purposes, and
$7.384,916 unrestricted. Unrestricted net position that can be used to finance day-to-day
operations without constraints established by debt covenants, enabling legislation, or other
legal requirements was $7,384,916 at the end of the year.

The net position of the City’s business-type activities decreased by $566,560to $8,766,014
from the $9,28 1,978 reported in the prior year. Net position includes $4,851,807 net investment
in capital assets net of related debt. Net position restricted for special purposes totaled
$4,065,941. Unrestricted net position at year end was $(151,733).

This change in net position was the net result of three factors. First, the City’s revenues
exceeded the expenditures and other resources by $1,7,38,579. Second, the City’s recognition
of depreciation and amortization decreased the net position by $773,001 (governmental
activities) and $563,889 (business-type activities. Third, the City increased its net position as
a result of long-term debt principal payments in the amount of $245,000,




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

September 30, 2024
Table I
CITY OF RAYMONDVILLE, TEXAS
NET POSITION
Governumental Business-fype Activitles Total
Activities
2024 2023 1024 20623 2024 2023

Current and other assets $ 80248501 § 7249292 | § 6590402 | § 7250536 | § 14615261 [ $ 14459828
Net pension assets 1,224,496 728,609 133,132 436,233 1,957,628 1,164,842
Captial asseis 9,263,024 8,950,972 13,313,491 13,773,996 22,576,515 22.769,968

Total assets 18,512,379 16969873 | 206370051 21465766 30149904 | 38434639
Deferred Outflow of Resources 219247 469,616 130,904 281,169 356,151 750,785
Current liabilities 1,569,481 2301236 4,255 84 3,981,653 5,865,375 . 6,282,889
Noncurrent Habikities 3,285,000 3,543,600 1620373 8,461,684 10,905,373 12,006,684

Totalliabilies 4854481 5846236 | 11916267 | 12443337] 16770748 | 18,289,573
Deférred Inflow of Resources - - - - - -

Deferred Inflow Related to Pension 126 450 16,110 77,505 21,620 206,955 S1.7130

Deferred Inflow Related to OPEB 11,598 8,141 23,739 -

Total Deferred Inflows of Resouwces woas| serio]  wee]  alew]  wmes]  sui
Net Position:
Invested capital assets, net of related debt 5,728,024 5210972 | 4851807 | 4493983 | 10579831 | 9704955
Restricted 621,157 $55,.966 4,065 941 G005622 1 4.687,008 4,661,588
Unrestricted 7,384,916 5,689,204 (151,733) 782,373 7,233,183 6,471,577

Total Net Position $ 13,734,097 1 & 11,556,142 | $  £.766,0151 % 9281978 |5 22500112 [§ 20,838,120




MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

September 30, 2024
Table I
CITY OF RAYMONDVILLE, TEXAS
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Governmental Activitles Business-type Activitiea Total
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Revenuea:
Program Revenues:
Chaiges for services $ 50859 | § 153870 M 3343,102 3 33963568 419398115  4,150226
Qeneral Revenues:
Taxes and assessments 1877124 3,874,814 - - 3,877,124 3874814
License and peonits 49,313 23,257 - - 49,313 23257
Intergovemnmental 2,448 804 1,395,538 129,384 548,789 2,578,188 1,944.327
Miscellaneous $42,102 322,995 348,130 42,144 790,232 370,139
Other financing uses TT048 - (83,303) - (6,255) -

Pgnsionincome 113,415 75,022 65,230 e - 173,645 75,022

Tofal Resenaes 7,958,665 oA a8 3802583

3992350 | 11,661.208 [0.437.783

Expenses:

General government 1,186,569 1,113,241 - - 1,189,569 1,115,241
Waler - - 2,084,896 1,855,208 2,084,896 1,855,208
Public safety 1,496,113 1,844,308 - - 1,496213 1,814,308
Sewer - - $93,781 1,056,802 995,781 1,056,802
Higlovays and streets 690,684 729811 - - 690,684 729811
Adnsinistration - - 650,834 700333 630,134 701,533
Sanitation 663,679 618,823 - - 665,679 628823
Interest expense - - 68,441 132309 48,441 132,309
Culture and recreation 676,154 362,826 - . 676,154 562,326
Debt service-interest on long teon debt 68,189 £40,963 - - 68,£89 149,563
Otder financing sources {3.963) 33,392 3,963 - - 55,392
Pension expense - - - 139,868 - 139,863

LA12972

Depreciation and amostization 773,001 849,827 363,889 363,143

Total Expenses 5553526 027,081 | 4,369,108 1HI8863 ] 992630 10375916

Change in Net Position 2395158 SISAL (366,560) (8356,576)] 1738579 61,838

Net position - Beginning 11,556,142 11,025,795 9,231,978 9714986 | 20,838,120 20,740,781
Prior Period Adjustment (127,153) 11,933 30,592 23,568 (76590 35,501
Net Position - Ending S 13,34087 [§ 1155604218 876601413 9281078 | § 22500112 [3 20838120

10




MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
September 30, 2624

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

At September 30, 2024, the City had approximately $22,576,515 (net of accumulated
depreciation) invested in a broad range of capital assets, including land, structures and
improvements and equipment.

This year major additions included:

- Buildings, improvements, and equipment: $1,143,436.
Debt
At September 30, 2024, the City had approximately $13,065,013 in bonded debt and capital
lease outstanding versus approximately $13,065,013 last year. $245,000 of bond principal of
general government debt was repaid and $823,329 of bond principal of business type debt was
repaid.

ECONOMIC FACOTRS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET AND RATES

The City’s elected and appointed officials considered many factors when setting the fiscal year
2025 budget. The City expects revenues to equal the expenditures in the government type
activities and in the business type activities for the fiscal year 2025.

CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

The financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers and investors,
and creditors with a general overview of the City’s finances and to show the City’s
accountability for the money it receives. If you have a question about this report or need
additional financial information, contact the City Administration Office at 142 South 7 Street,
Raymondville, Texas 78580.

11
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CITY OF RAYMONDVILLE, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
September 30, 2024

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents b 4,696,442 $ 545,107 $ 5,241,549
Accounts receivable (net)
Accounts 62,592 207,080 269,671
Sates tax 171,215 - 171,215
Properiy taxes 694,883 - 694,883
Loans 469,454 - 469,454
Due from other funds 1,824,403 1,393,493 3,217,896
Prepaid 36,61 39,656 76,307
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash eguivalents
Interest and sinking funds 69,259 3,960,152 4,029,412
Customer deposils - 444,874 444 874
Net pension asset [,224,496 733,132 1,957,628
Capital assets (net) 9,263,024 13,313,491 22,576,515
Totaf assets 18,512,379 20,637,025 39,148,404
Deferred outflows of resources
Pension contributions 21,157 16,260 43,417
Actual experience and projected - pension 183,913 110,113 294,026
OPEB contribution 4,521 2,343 6,804
Changes in assumptions-OPEB 3,055 2,189 5,844
Total Deferred outflosws of resources 219,247 130,504 350,151
Lizhilities
Accounts payable 464,480 215,675 680,155
Unearned revenie 5,584 £16,225 121,809
Due to other funds 513,378 2,703,906 3,217,284
Cuslomer deposils payable 262,935 339,085 542,020
Net OPEB liability related to pension 133,105 79,692 212,797
Noncurrent liabilities
“Due within one year 250,000 841,311 1,091,311
Due in more han one year 3,285,000 7,620,373 10,905,373
Total Liabilities 4,854 481 11,916,208 16,770,749
Deferred inflows of resources
Actual experience and expected - pension 80,997 48,494 129,49%
Changes in assumptions-pension 48,454 29,610 77,464
Actual experience and assumption - OPEB 13,568 8,141 21,739
Total deferred inflows of resources 143,048 85,646 206,955
Net Position
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 5,728,024 4,851,807 10,579,831
Restricted for:
Debt service 105,872 3,960,152 4,066,024
Capital projects 52,880 - 52,880
Perpetual 462,406 - 462,406
Customer deposits - 145,789 105,789
Unrestricted 7,384,916 (151,733) 7,233,183
Tolal net position $ 13,734,097 $ 8,766,015 $ 22,500,112

The accompenying notes are an integral part of these financial siatements.
i2




CITY OF RAYMONDVILLE, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Fiseal Yeayr Ended September 30, 2024

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants & Grants & Governmental
Primary Government Expenses Services Contribulions Coutributions Aclivities

Governmental activities:

General government 3 1,189,569 $ - $ - 3 “ $ (1,189,569}

Public safety 1,496,213 11,942 - - (1,484,272}

Highways and streets 690,684 - - - (690,684}

Sanitation 665,679 838,917 - - 173,239

Culture and recreation 676,154 - - - (676,154}

Interest expense 68,189 - - - (65,189)

Depreciation 771,001 - - - {773,001)
Totat governmental activities 5,559,490 850,859 - - (4,708,631)
Business-type activities:

Water 2,084,896 2,139,122 - - 54,226

Sewer 995,781 1,203,981 208,200

Administration 650,134 - - (650,134)

Interest expense 68,441 - - - {08,441)

Depseciation 563,889 - - - {563,889)
Total business-type activities 4,363,141 3,343,102 - - 1,020,039
Total Primary Government 9,922 631 4,193,961 - - (5,728,6069)
Changes in net position:

Governmenial Business-Type
Activities Aclivities Total

Net {expense)revenue (4,708,631) (1,020,039} (5,728,66%)
General revenues:

Taxes 3,877,124 - 3877,124

License and permits 49,313 - 46,313

Intergovernmental 2,448,804 129,384 2,578,188

Miscellaneous 442,102 348,130 790,232

OPEB income (expense} 77,048 {83,303) (6,255)

Pension income {expense) 113,415 65,230 178,645
Tolal generai revenues 7,007,807 459,441 7467,248
Other financing sources {uses)

Transfers in 309,584 826,022 1,§35,607

Transfers out (303,622) {831,983) {1,135,607)
Total other financing sources (uses) 5,963 {5,963) -
Changes in net position 2,305,138 {566,560) 1,738,579
Net positien - beginning 11,556,142 9,281,978 20,838,120

Prior period adjustment (127,183} 50,592 {76,591)

Nel position - ending

§ 13734097 $ 8,766,015

$ 22,500,112

The accompanying nofes are an integral part of these financial statenients.
13




Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net

Accounts

Sales tax

Property taxes

Loans
Due from other funds
Prepaid interest
Restricied assets:

Cash arxl cash equivalents

Total assets
Linbilities

Accounts payable

Due to other funds

Partial payments from custoniers
Uneamed revenue

Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resotrces
Unavailable advalorem taxes

Total deferred inflows of resources

Fund balances

Restricted fund balances
Debi service
Perpeiual care
Capital projects
Unassigned fund balances

Total fund balances

Total Habilities, deferred (nflows
& fund balances

CITY OF RAYMONDVILLE, TEXAS

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
September 30, 2024

Interest Total
General Economic Special Capital & Governnenis

Fund Development Revenue Prgjects Sinking Funds
$ 617,025 5 643,803 $ 3,362,158 ] 73,456 - $ 4,696,442
62,592 - - - - 62,592
166,379 4,836 - - - 171,215
694,883 - - - - 694,883
- 66,000 403,454 - - 469,454
1,434,388 44,493 345,523 - - 1,824,403
- - - - 36,651 36,611
- - - - 05,259 69,259
2,975,266 759,131 4,111,134 73,456 105,870 8,024,859
256,694 3,017 204,769 - - 464,480
234,845 10,805 247,153 20,575 - 513,378
- - 202,933 - - 202,935
- - 5,584 - - 5,584
491,539 13,822 660,440 20,573 - 1,186,376
683,352 - - - - 083,352
683,352 - ~ - - 683,352
- - - - 105,872 195,872
259,472 - 202,935 - - 462,406
- - - 52,880 - 52,880
1,546,903 745,300 3,247,760 - - 5,533,972
1,806,375 745,309 3,450,695 52,880 105,872 6,155,130
$ 2,975,206 3 750,131 $  4tiL136 3§ 73,436 105,872 5 §,024,858

The accenipanying nofes are on integral parl of these financial statenients,
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Revenues

Taxes

Licenses & permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines & forfeits
Other revenues

Total revenues

Expenditures

Current;
General government
Public safety
Highways & streets
Sanitation
Culture & recreation
Pension

Debl service:
Principal
Interest

Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total cther financing
sources {uses)

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances - beginning

Prior period adjustment
Fund balances-ending

CITY OF RAYMONDVILLE, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, & CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

for the Fiscal Year Ended September 39, 2024

Interest Total
General Econentic Special Capital & Governments
Fund Development Revenue Projects Sinking Funds

$ 3441812 $ 435312 3 - $ - - § 3877124

49,313 - - - - 49,313

- 2,448,804 - 2,448,804

838,917 - - 838,917

11,942 - - - - 11,942

306,141 33,494 99.038 1,912 1517 442,102

4,648,126 468,806 2,547,842 1,912 1,517 7,608,203

815,919 184,359 189,291 - - 1,189,569

1,229,206 - 267,008 - - 1,496,213

690,684 - - - - 690,684

665,679 - - - - 665,679

676,154 - - - 676,154

34,083 1,577 4,028 - 39,698

- - - - 245,006 245,000

- - - - 68,189 68,189

- - 1,045,052 - - 1,045,052

4,111,735 185,936 1,505,379 - 313,189 6,116239

536,391 282,870 1,042,463 1,912 (311,672} 1,551,964

- - 40,179 - 269,404 309,582
(134,178) {169,444} - - - {303,622)

(134,178) {169,444) 40,179 - 269,404 5,961

402,213 143,427 1,082,642 1,912 (42,268) 1,557,925

1,398,166 631,882 2,402,970 50,968 148,139 4,032,125
- - (34,918) - - (34,918}

3 1,800,375 $ 745,309 3 3450695 % 52,880 105872 § 6,155,130

The accompanying notes ave an integral part of these financial statentents.




CITY OF RAYMONDVILLE, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
FROPRIETARY FUND
Seplember 30, 2024

Assefs

Cash and cash equivalents
Customers' accownls receivable (net)
Due from other funds

Prepaid

Restriced assets:

Interest and sinking Amnds:
Cash and cash equivalents:
2012
2514
2420
221
2022

Customer deposits

Net pension asset

Property, plang, and equipthent

Land and reservoir

Depreciable plant, improvements, and equipment

Less: accumulated depreciation

Totai assets

Deferred outflows of rescurces

Pension contribution
Actual experience and projected-pension
OPEB contdbution
Changes in assumptions-OPEB
Total deferred outflows of resousces

Linbilities
Accounts payable
Drie to other funds
Unieamed revenue

Customer's deposits
Net OPEB liability related to pension

Noneurrent liabitities
Due within one yeas
Duzg in tore than one year

Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources

Actual experience and expected-pension
Chianges in asswmptions-pension

Actual expedence and assamplion - OPEB

Total deferred inflows of resources

el position

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Restricted for debt service
Restricted for customer deposits
Unrestricted

Fotai net position

$ 545,107
207,159
1,393,414

39,695

23,066
24,035
1,373,468
227,217
2,312,366
3,560,152

444,874
733,152

580,451
25,484,284

(12,751,244)
13,313491

20,637,025

16,260
110,113
2,343
2,189
130,504

215,675
2,703,906
116,225
339,085
79,692

841,311
7,620,313

11,986,268

48,494
29,010

3,141
85,646

4,851,807
3,960,152
195,789

{151,733)

$ 3,766,014

The accompanyiing setes are ai integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF RAYMONDVILLE, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF INCOME, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITEON
PROPRIETARY FUND '
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2024

Proprietary
Fund Type
Enterprise
Operating revenues:
Water revenue h 2,139,122
Sewer revenue 1,203,981
Intergovernmental revenue 129,384
Pension income 65,230
Total operating revenues 3,537,716
Operating expenses:
Water treatment 1,634,783
Water distribution 450,113
Sewage collection and disposal 995,781
Adminisirative expense 650,134
OPLEB expense 83,303
Depreciation expense 563,889
Total operating expenses 4,378,002
Operating income (loss) {840,286)
Non-operafing revenues (expenses):
Miscellaneous 348,130
Interest (68,441)
Total non-cpertating revenues (expenses) 279,689
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in 826,022
Transfers out (831,983)
Total other financing sources (uses) (5,961)
Change in net position (566,560)
Net position at beginning of year 9,281,978
Prior peried adjustment 50,592
Total net position 3 8,766,014

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF RAYMONDVILLE, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND
For the Fiseal Year Ended September 30, 2024

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from vser charges
Cash payments for goods and services
Cash payments to employees {or services
Other cperating revenue
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing aclivities
Operaling transfers
Net cash used for non capital {irancing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Acquisition of capilal assels
Principal payment of debt
interest payment on debt
Net cash provided by capilal and related financing activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest on investmenis
Net cash provided by invesling activities
Met increase (decrease) in cash
Cash at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Cash at end of year

$

3,472,486

(1,653,076)

(1,038,867
55,230
845,773

(98,389
{823,329)
68,441)

(990,154)

{144,380)

5,094,585

4,950,134

Cash and cash equivalent {trestricted) 545,107
Cash and cash equivalent {restricied) 4,405,027
Totai ¢cash 5 4,950,134
Reconciliation of operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by used in operating activities
Operating incoms S (492,156)
Adjustments to reconcile income (loss})
from operations 1o net cash from operatng activities:
Other nonoperating incoine
depreciation expense 563,889
Prior period adjustment 50,592
(Increase) Decrease in accounts receivables 49,172
(Inerease) Decrease in Due from other funds 466,580
(Increase) Decrease in nel pension net (296,899)
Decrease (Increase) in deferred outflow - pesion contribution (3,019}
Decrease (Increase) in defesred cutflow - changes assumption - pension 157,815
Decrease (Increase) in deferred outflow - OPEB contribution (2,343)
Decrease {Increase) in deferred gutflow - Changes assumption - OPEB (2,189)
Increase {Decrease) in accounts payable 134,793
Increase {Decrease) in due to other funds 72,403
Increase {{Decrease) in unearned revenue (0)
[ncrease {Dacrease) customer's deposits 3410
Increase {Decrease) Net OPEB Hability related to pension plan 79,692
Increase (Decrease) in deferred intflow - experience - OPEB 8,141
Increase (Decrease) in deferred inflow projected-pension 26,874
increase (Decrease) in deferred inflow expected-pension 29,010
Tolal ajustments 1,337,924
Cash provided by operaling activities M 845,773

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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CITY OF RAYMONDVILLE, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

NOTE A — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Raymondpville, Texas was incorporated on March 3, 1921, The City operates under a
Commission-City Manager form of government and provides the following services as authorized
by its charter: public safety (police and fire), highways and streets, sanitation, culture-recreation,
public improvements, planning and zoning, and general administrative service.

All funds of the City of Raymondville, over which the city has oversight responsibility, are
included in the annual financial report.

Reporting Entity - The Board of Commissioners (the “Board), is elected by the public and has the
authority to make decisions, appoint administrators and managers, and significantly influence
operaticns. It also has the primary accountability for discal matters. Therefore, the City is a
financial reporting entity as defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”)
in its Statements 14, “The Financial Reporting Entity”. The Economic Development Corporation
of Raymondville is included as a blended component unit within the reporting entity. It is reported
as a major fund.

GASB concluded that the basic criteria for including an agency, institution, authority, or other
organization in a governmental unit reporting entity is the exercise of oversight responsibility over
such agencies by the governmental unit’s elected officials. Oversight responsibility is defined to
include, but it not limited to:

- Financial Interdependency — When a separate agency produces a financial benefit for or
imposes a financial burden on a unit of government, that agency is part of the reporting
entity. Manifestation of financial interdependency includes responsibility for financing
deficits, entitlements to surpluses, and guarantees of, or “moral responsibility” for, debt.

- Selection of Governing Authority — An authoritative appointment is one where the entity’s
chief elected official maintains a significant continuing relationship with the appointed
officials with respect to carrying out important public functions,

- Designation of Management — When management is appointed by and held accountable to
a governing authority that is included in the entity, the activity being managed falls within
the entity.

- Ability significantly to influence operations — This ability includes, but is not limited to,
the authority to review and approve budgetary requests, adjustments, and amendments,

- Accountability for Fiscal Muaitters — Fiscal authority normally includes the authority for
final approval over budgetary appropriations, respensibility for funding deficits and
operating deficiencies, disposals or surplus funds, control over the collection and
disbursement of funds, and maintenance of title to assets,
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CITY OF RAYMONDVILLE, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — (Continued)

There may be, however, factors other than oversight that are so significant that exclusion of a
particular agency from a reporting entity’s financial statements would be misleading. These other
factors include:

- Scope of Public Service — Aspects to be considered include who the activity benefits and
whether it is conducted within the entity’s geographic boundaries and generally available
to its citizens.

- Special Financing Relationship — Such a relationship may have been created to benefit the
entity by providing for the issuance of debt on behalf of the entity.

The following local agencies are not part of the city’s reporting entity because the city takes no
financial responsibility for them, elected officials of the city do not select their governing authority,
the management of the agency is designated independently of the city, the city is not in a position
to influence operations and there is no accountability for fiscal matter.

Raymondville Independent School District
Willacy County Drainage District #2
Willacy County Hospital District
Willacy County Emergency Services District
Willacy County Navigation District

Based on these criteria, the various funds and account groups (being all the fund types and account
groups of the City) shown in the Table of Contents are included in this report.

The accounting policies of the City of Raymondville, Texas conform to generally accepted
accounting principles as applicable to governments, The following is a summary of the more
significant policies:

1. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e. the statement of net assets and the statement of
changes in net assets) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary
government and its component units. For the most part, the effect of inter-fund activities has been
removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes
and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-fype activities, which rely
to significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported
separately from certain legally separate component units for which the primary government is
financially accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function, or segment, are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers
or applicants who purchase, sue, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided
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CITY OF RAYMONDVILLE, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

NOTE A — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —~ (Continued)

by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment.

Taxes and other ilems not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as
general revenues,

2. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the ecomomic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses atre recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Ad valorem taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and
similar items are recognized as revenues as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the
provider have been met,

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are considered to be
available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay
liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available
if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal year, Expenditures generally
are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, compensated
absences are recorded only when payment is due.

Those revenues susceptible to accrual are property tax, sales taxes, franchise tax, special
assessments, interest revenues and charges for services. Sales faxes collected and held by the
intermediary collecting governments at year end on behalf of the City also are recognized as
revenues. Fines permits and parking meter revenues are not susceptible to accrual because
generally they are not measurable until received in cash.

The City reports the following fund types and related major governmental funds:

General Fund — The General Fund is used to account for financial resources used for
general operations, It is the basic fund of the City and covers all activities, Any fund
balances are considered resources available for current opetations.

Econontic Development Fund — The Economic Development Fund is used to account for
financial purposes used for economic development. Any fund balances are available for
use in economic development for the City.

Special Revenue Fund — The Special Revenue Iund is used to account for revenues
received and disbursements received from grants and seizures. Fund balances are only
available for the purpose of the grants received.

Capital Project Fund — The Capital Project Fund is used to account for bond proceeds
21




CITY OF RAYMONDVILLE, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — (Continued)

issued for the police department, park improvements, street improvements and the
expenditures of those projects. Fund balances are available for improvements.

Interest and Sinking Fund — The Interest and Sinking Fund is used to account to make bond
payments. Fund balances are available for bond interest and principal payments.

Proprietary Fund
All proprietary funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting.

Enterprise Fund — The enterprise Fund is used to account for the operations of the water and sewer
fund that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises where the
intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing good
or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through
user charged,

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided; 2) operating grants and contributions; and 3) capital grants and
contributions including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general
revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government’s policy
to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed,
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CITY OF RAYMONDVILLE, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2624

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — (Continued)

3. Reconciliation of Governmental Fund Balance Sheet fo the Statement of Net Position

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Fund $ 6,155.130

Capital assets, long-term debt, net pension asset and the deferred

outflows and the deferred inflows concerning the pension plan nsed

in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore

are nof reported in governmental funds. The net effect of including the

beginning balances of capital assets (net of depreciation),

long-term debt and the pension plan is to increase net position. 6,373,087

Current year capital outlays, long-term debt payments are revenues
and expenditures in the firad financial statements, but they should be
shown as increases in capital assets and recductions in long-term debt
in the statement of net position. The net effect of including the 2024

capital outlay, and debt payments is to increase net position. 1,290,052

The 2024 depreciation expense mcrease accamulated depreciation.
The net effect of the current year's depreciation is to decrease net position. (773.001)

Other reclassifications are necessary to convert from modified
accrual basis of accounting to accrual basis of acconnting. These
include recognizing unearned revenues as yevenue for the current
ad valorein tax, adjusting prior year's delinguent ad valorem taxes
from wmearned revenues to beginning net position. The net effect of

these reclassifications is fo increase net position. 572,084

The net position asset and the deferred outflows and the deferved inflows
concerning the pension plan are not financial resources and therefore are not
reported in governmental funds. The net effect is to increase net position. 116,746

Met Position of Governmental Activities % 13,734,097
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CITY OF RAYMONDVILLE, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

NOTE A — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — (Continued)

4. Reconciliation of the Governmental Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes

in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities

Total Net Changes in Fund Balances - Govermmental Funds

Current year capital outlays, and long-term debt payments are expenditures
in the fund financial statements, but they should be shown as increases in
capital assets and reductions in long-term debt in the governmental-wide
financial statements. The net effect of removing the 2024 capital outlays and
debt payments, is to increase net position.

Depreciation and amortization are not recognized as an expense in
governmental finds since it does not require the use of cutrent financial
resomrces. The net effect of the current year's depreciation and amortization
is to decrease net position.

Other reclassifications are necessary to convert from the modified
accmal basis of accounting to the accrual basis of accounting. This
includes adjusting current year revenue to show the revenue eamed from
this year's ad valorem tax collections. The net effect of these
reclassifications is to decrease net position.

Pension incose (expense) is not recognized as expenditure in the Govermental
finds since it does not require the use of current financial resources. The

net effact of the current vear's pension come (expense) is to increase net position.
P

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities

24

3 1557925
1,290,052
(773,001)
230,161

S 2,305,138




CITY OF RAYMONDVILLE, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2624

NOTE A — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — (Continued)
5. Fixed Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant and equipment are reported in the applicable
governmental or column in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined
by the City as assets with an initial, individual cost of $5,000 or more and an estimated useful life
in excess of one year.

All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is
not available. Donated fixed assets are valued at their estimated fair value on the date donated.

Depreciation of general capital assets used by funds categorized as governmental activities is not
provided in the fund financial statements, however, is included in the gross expense by function in
the government-wide Statement of Activities. Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciations, are
reported on the governmental activities and column of government-wide Statement of Net Assets,
Depreciation has been provided over the estimated useful lives using the straight-line method.

The estimate useful lives are as follows:

Buildings 30 - 40 years
Plant and improvements 30 - 40 years
Equipment 7 - 15 years

6. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements:

1. Prior to August 1, the City Secretary-Treasurer submits to the City Commission a proposed
operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following October 1. The operating
budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.,

2. Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments.
3. Prior to October 1, the budget is legally enacted through passage of ordinance.

4, The City Secretary-Director of Finance is authorized to change spending of budgeted
amounts between departments within any fund; however, any revisions that alter the total
expenditures of any fund except for the enterprise fund must be approved by the City
Commission.

5. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year
for the General Fund and Enterprise Fund. Formal budgetary integration is not employed
for the Capital Project Funds because effective budget control is alternatively achieved
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CITY OF RAYMONDVILLE, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ~ (Continued)
through contracts.

6. Budgets for the General Fund are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP). Budgets for the General Fund and Enterprise Fund lapse at
year end.

7. Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted, or as amended by the City Commission. The
City is bound by total appropriations for Revenue Funds and not by individual line or
department expenditure. The City is not legally bound by the enterprise budget, it is used
as a management tool.

7. Encumbrance

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, unperformed contracts, and other
commitments for the expenditure or monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the
applicable appropriation, is employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration to facilitate
planning and control. Encumbrances outstanding at year end are reported as reservations of fund
balance since they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities.

There were no encumbrances at September 30, 2024,
8. Investments

Investments are authorized in governmental securities, in financial institutions with governimental
securities pledged, or in investments in mutual fund pools investing in governmental securities.
Investments are stated at cost. Investments are all short-term certificates of deposit with a FDIC
Insured Bank or with TexPool, an investment service for public funds. Demand deposits and
certificates of deposit are either covered adequately by FDIC insurance or by securities pledged
by the First Community Bank at year end. The City holds safekeeping certificates which list
securities that are pledged to the City. Funds invested at TexPool are not covered by FDIC
insurance and there is no collateral pledged to the City.

9. Inventory

There are no inventories on hand,

10. Accumulated Paid Vacation, Sick Pay, and Other Employee Benefit Amounts
Accumulated unpaid vacation, sick pay, and other employee benefit amounts are not accrued.
Vacations are taken annually and sick pay is allowed for | day per month of service up to 60 days.
Sick leave is paid only for days actually sick. This required a doctor’s excuse and approval of the

department head. Unused sick leave expires upon termination. The City feels accrual of employee
benefits is not material.
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CITY OF RAYMONDVILLE, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — (Continued)
11. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent include cash on hand, in bank checking accounts, savings accounts, bank
certificates of deposit maturing 90 days after September 30.

12. Comparative Data

Comparative (i.e. presentation of prior year totals by fund type) data have not been presented in
the basic financial statements since their inclusion would make the statements unduly complex and
difficult to read.

13. Fund Balance Policies

The city has classified its fund balances in the following classifications:

Nonspendable

Restricted § 621,157
Committed

Unassigned $ 5.533,972

The Board of Commissioners is the City’s decision-making authority for both committing and
restricting fund balances,

The Board of Commissioners must by formal board action establish, modify, or rescind a fund
balance commitment.

When the City incurs an expense for which it may use either restricted or unassigned assets, it uses
the restricted assets first unless unassigned assets will have to be returned because they were not
used.

14. Pension Benefit Plan

Pensions. For purposes of measuring the net pension liability/asset, deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pension, and pension expense, information
about the Fiduciary Net Position of the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) and
additions to deductions from TMRS’s Fiduciary Net Position have been determined on the

same basis as they are reported by TCDRS. For this purpose, plan contributions are recognized
in the period that compensation is reported for the employee, which is when contributions are
legally due. Benefit payments and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance
with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
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CITY OF RAYMONDVILLE, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

NOTE A -~ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — (Continued)
15. L.eases

The City has adopted FASB ASC 842, Leases, with a date of initial application of January 1,2022.
For leases with a lease term greater than one year, the City recognizes a lease asset for ifs right to
use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability for the corresponding lease obligation. The
City determines whether an arrangement is or contains a lease at contract inception. Operating
leases with a duration greater than one year are included in operating lease right-of-use assets,
current portion operating lease liabilities, and operating lease liabilities, net of current portion, the
City’s Statement of Net Position at September 30, 2024. Operating lease right-of-use assets and
operating lease liabilities are recognized at the lease commencement date based on the present
value of lease payments over the lease term. In determining the present value of lease payments,
the City uses a risk free rate of a period comparable with that of the lease term, The City considers
the lease term to be noncancelable period that it has the right to use the undertying asset, including
all periods covered by an option to (1) extend the lease if the City is reasonably certain not to
exercise the option, and (3) extend, or not to terminate, the lease in which exercise of the option is
controlied by the lessor.

The operating lease right-of-use assets also include any lease payments and exclude lease
incentives received or receivable. Lease expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the
expected lease term. Variable lease expenses are recorded when incurred.

16. Prepaid Expenses

Prepaid assets are assets that arise on a balance sheet as a result of the City making payments for
goods and services to be received in the near future. While prepaid expenses are initially recorded
as assets, their value is expended over time as the benefit is received into the income statement,
because unlike conventionai expenses, the City will receive something of value in the near future.

17, Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generaily accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from these estimates.

NOTE B - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Leoal and Contractual Provisions Governing Deposits and Investinents

The Public Funds Investment Act (Government Code Chapter 2256) contains specific provisions
in the areas of investment practices, management reports, and establishment of appropriate
policies. Among other things, it requires a governmental entity to adopt, implement, and publicize
an investment policy, That policy must address the following areas: :(1) safety of principle and
tiquidity, (2) portfolio diversification, (3) allowable investments, {4) acceptable risk levels, (5)
expected rates of return, (6) maximum allowable stated maturity of portfolio investments, (7)
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NOTE B - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS — (Continued)

maximum average dollar-weighted maturity allowed based on the stated maturity date for the
portfolio, (8) investment staff quality and capabilities, (9) and bid solicitation preferences for
certificates of deposit. Statues authorize the entity to invest in (1) obligations of the U.S, Treasury,
cerfain U.S, agencies, and the State of Texas; (2) certificates of deposit; (3) certain municipal
securities; (4) money market savings accounts, (5) repurchase agreements, (6) bankers’
acceptances, (7) mutual funds, (8) investment pools, (9) guaranteed investment contracts, (10) and
common trust funds. The Act also requires the entity to have independent auditors perform test
procedures related to investment practices as provided by the Act. The City is in substantial
compliance with the requirements of the Act and with local policies.

Policies Governing Deposits and Investiments

In compliance with the Public Funds Investment Act, the City had adopted a deposit and
investment policy. That policy addresses the following risks:

- Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits: In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event
of a bank failure, the City’s deposits may not be returned to it. Deposits were with the
contracted depository bank in interest bearing accounts. Deposits consisted of cash and
cash equivalents, The City has deposited $269,504 with TexPool, an investment service
public funds. Funds invested with TexPoo! are not covered by FDIC insurance and there is
no collateral pledged to the City.

This City is not exposed to Custodial Risk for its deposits held in its depository bank as all
wete either insured or collateralized with securities held by the City’s agent in the City’s
name at September 30, 2024, These deposits were secured by $250,000 in FDIC coverage
on the demand accounts, and in securities held by the First Community Bank. The City is
not exposed to Custodial Credit Risk for its deposits as all were either insured or
collateralized with securities held by the City’s agent in the City’s name at September 30,
2024,

- Custodial Credit Risk — Investments: For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of
the failure of the counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its
investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party, The City
had no investments at September 30, 2024, exposed to Custodial Credit Risk.

- Interest Rate Risk: Investment strategies have as the primary objective of investment

liquidity. As a means of minimizing risk of loss due to interest rate fluctuations, certificates
of deposit do not have a stated final maturity date which exceed 180 days.
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NOTE C - FASB ASC 606 MEW ACCOUNTING GUIDANCE

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued new guidance that created Topic 606,
Revenue from Coniracts with Customers, in the Accounting Standards Codification (ASC). Topic
606 supersedes the revenue recognition requirements in FASB ASC 605, Revenue Recognition,
and required the recognition of revenue when promised goods or services are transferred to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitles in
exchange for good or services. The new guidance also added Subtopic 340-40, Other Assets and
Deferred Costs — Contracts with Customers, to the ASC to require the deferral of incremental costs
of obtaining a contract with a customer. Collectively, we refer to the new Topic 606 and Subtopic
640-40 as the “new guidance.” No retrospective transition was necessary from the adoption of the
new guidance.

NOTE D - PROPERTY TAX

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Taxes are levied on
October | and are due February 1, penalties are assessed after that date. Willacy County Tax
Collector bills and collects the City’s property taxes.

Estimated uncollectible taxes — The provision of 10% of taxes receivable is established on a basis
of a responsible estimate of uncollectability.

The taxes are for the year January 1, 2023, through December 31, 2023, but the taxes are not levied
until October 2023. The City does not consider property taxes as available if they are collected
within 60 days after year-end because the amount is not significant. Total unavailable ad valorem
taxes for property tax was $683,352 and $550,933 for fiscal year September 30, 2024, and fiscal
year September 30, 2023 respectively.

NOTE E — DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows of resources at September 30, 2024, consisted of the following:

General
Fund

Unavaitable advalorem taxes £ 683,382
Total $ 683352
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NOTE F - INTERFUND RECEIVABLE AND PAYABLE BALANCES

Individual fund interfund receivable and payable balance were as follows at September 30, 2024

Interfind Interfund
Fund Receivables Payable
(General Fund $ 1434388 $ 234845
HEeonomic Development 44 493 16,805
Capital Project - 20.575
Special Revenue 345,523 247,153
Enterprise Fund 1,393,493 2703906
Total $ 3217896 $ 3,217.896
NOTE G — CAPITAL ASSETS ACTIVITY
A summary of changes in general fixed assets follows:
Balance Balance
October 1, September 30,
2023 Addifons Deletions 2024
Land $ 1,507.930 g - 3 - $ 1.507.930
Buildings 5,793,763 - - 5,793,763
Improvements other
than building 14,460,563 996,668 - 15457231
Equipment 5,643,565 48,384 - 5,691,949
27.405.821 1,045,052 - 28.450.873
Less accumulated depreciation  (18.414,849) (773,001) ; (19,187 850)
MNet $ 8.960,972 $ 272051 3 - 8 9263024

A summary of proprietary fund type property, plant and equipment at September 30, 2024

follows:
Land and reservoir

Depreciable plan, improvements, and equipment
Total

Less accumulated depreciation
Net
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25,484,284

26,064,735

(12,751,244)
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NOTE H - CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT

The following is a summary of debt service requirements and bond transactions of the City for
fiscal year ended September 30, 2024:

Add Bends Less Bonds Amount
Bonds and and Other and Other Bonds and Due
Notes Payable Long-Temm Long-Tem Notes Payable Within
Qctober 1, 2023 Debt Issued Debit Retired September 30, 2024 One Year
Generat Fund
None
Utitity fund
2010 Wastewater $ £20.012 g - $ 45000 $ 775,012 by 45,000
2012 Series 1,900,000 - 350,000 1,550,000 360,000
2014 Serles 1,375,000 - 115,000 1,260,000 120,000
Capital Lease 1,208,001 - 106,329 1,101,672 109,311
2020 Series 1,300,060 - 75,000 1,225,000 75,000
2021 Serles 315,000 - 11,000 304,000 11,000
2022 Series 2,367,000 - 121,000 2,246,000 121,000
General long-term debt
2014 Serics 1,875,000 - 140,000 1,735,000 145,000
2018 Series 1,903,000 - 105,000 1,800,000 105,000
8 13,065,013 5 - $ 1.068329 § 11,996,684 g 1,091,311
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NOTE H - CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT - (Continued)

$1,365,660
City of Raymondville, Texas
Combination Tax and Subordinate lien Revenue
Certificates of Obligation, Series 2010

The City of Raymondville issued certificated of obligation called $1,365,000 City of
Raymondville, Texas, Combination Tax Subordinate Lien Revenue Certificate of Obligation,
Series 2010, for water system improvement construction. The certificates of obligation bear no
interest and are payable over a thirty-year period. Payments begin April, 1, 2011, and end April 1,
2040, The certificates are callable on April 1, 2020, or any date thereafter.

The certificates are payable to the Texas Water Development Board.

Debt service requirements for the term of the issue follow:

Hiscal Total
Year Principal Interest Requirement
2025 45,000 - 45,000
2026 45,000 - 45,000
2027 45,000 - 45,000
2028 45,000 - 45,000
2029 45,000 - 45,000
2030 50.000 - 50,000
2031 50,000 - 50,000
2032 50,000 - 50,000
2033 50,000 - 50,000
2034 50,000 . 50,000
2035 50,000 - 50,600
2036 50,000 - 50,000
2037 50,000 - 50,000
2038 50,000 - 50,000
2039 50,000 .- 50,000
2040 50,012 - 50,012
§ 775,012 $ - $ 775,012

33




CITY OF RAYMONDVILLE, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMEBER 30, 2024

NOTE H — CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT — (Continued)
The lease does not require any final payout for purchase,

$4,525,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds
Series 2012

During the year ended September 30, 2013, the City issued $4,525,000 General Obligation
Refunding Bonds. These bonds carry 2.9% interest., The first payment of $255,000 plus interest
was made on April 1, 2013, At September 30, 2024, the balance outstanding was $1,550,000. The
proceeds of these bonds were used to retire the balance due on the Series 1998 bonds in the amount
of $2,391,000 and the balance due on the Series 2002 bonds in the amount of $1,995,000. Interest
is payable semi-annually on April 1 and October 1. Ad valorem taxes are pledged as security for
this bond issue.

Fiscal Total
Year Principal Interest Requirement
2025 360,000 44 950 404,950
2026 385,000 34,510 419,510
2027 395,000 23,345 418,345
2028 410,000 11,890 421,890
$1,550,000 § 114695 $1,664,695
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NOTE H —~ CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT — (Continued)

$2,145,000
Combination Tax and Subordinate Lien Certificates of Obligation
Series 2014

During the year ended September 30, 2014, the City issued $2,145,000 Combination Tax and
Subordinate Lien Certificates of Obligation. These certificates of obligation bear varying interest
rates beginning with 0% and increasing to 4.05% interest. The first payment of $15,000 plus
interest was made on March 25, 2014, At September 30, 2024, the balance outstanding was
$1,260,000. Interest is payable semi-annually on April 1 and October 1. Principal payments are
due on Aptil 1 annually. Ad valorem taxes are pledged as security for this issue. Funds from this
debt issue are being used for a reverse osmosis water system and water well.

Fiscal Total
Year Principal Interest Requirement
2025 120,600 47.971 167,971
2026 125,000 43,915 168,915
2027 130,000 39,540 169,540
2028 135,000 34,834 169,834
2029 140,000 29,785 169,785
2030 145,000 24,395 169,395
2031 150,000 18.696 168,696
2032 155,000 12,711 167,711
2033 160,000 6,480 166,480
$ 1,260,000 § 258327 $§ 1,518,327
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NOTE H - CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT — (Continued)

$3,100,000
Certificates of Obligation (General Obligation Debt)
Series 2014

During the year ended September 30, 2014, the City issued $3,100,000 Combination Tax and
Limited Pledge Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2014. These certificates of obligation
bear an initial interest rate of 2.75% until April 1, 2019. Interest rate change dates are April 1,
2019, April 1, 2024, and April 1, 2029. The amortization schedule assumes an interest rate of
4,15% to maturity. This is a General Obligation Debt of the City. At September 30, 2024, the
balance outstanding was $1,735,000. Interest is payable semi-annually on April 1 and October 1.
Principal payments are due on April 1 annually. Ad valorem taxes and economic Development
Corporation sales taxes are pledged as security for issue, Funds from this debt issue are being used
to fund construction of a police department building and park and improvements.

Hiscal Total
Year Principal Interest Requirement
2025 145,000 72,003 217,003
2026 150,000 63,985 215,985
2027 155,000 59,760 214,760
2028 160,000 53,327 213327
2029 170,000 46,688 216,688
2030 175,000 39,632 214,632
2031 183,000 32,370 217,370
2032 190,009 24,693 214,693
2033 200,000 16.807 216,807
2034 205,000 8,508 213,508
$ 1,735,000 3 419,773 $2,154.773
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NOTE H - CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT — (Continued)

Capital Lease Purchase of Water Meters
During the year ended September 30, 2018, the City of Raymondville entered into a capital lease
transaction with Pinnacle Public Finance, Tnc to petform 2791 water meter retrofits with advanced
metering infrastructure. The purchase price was $1,674,785, The lease calls for one payment of

interest only of $54,350.27 and 59 quarterly payments of $34,687.80 including 2.775%.

Debt service requirement for the term of the issue follow:

Fiscal Total
Year Principal Interest Requirement
2025 109311 39.440 148,751
2026 112,376 26,375 138,751
2027 115,527 23,224 138,751
2028 118,766 19,983 138,751
2029 122,097 16,654 138,751
2030 125,520 13,231 138,751
2031 129,039 9,712 138,751
2032 132,658 6,093 138,751
2033 136,378 2,373 138,751
§$ 1,101,672 $ 157,087 $ 1258759
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NOTE H - CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT - (Continued)

$2,400,000
Certificates of Obligation (General Obligation Debt)

During the year ended September 30, 2018, the City issued $2,400,000 Combination Tax and
Limited Pledge Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2018. These certificates of obligation
bear interest rates from 3.39% to 3.64%. Proceeds of the certificates of obligation will be used for
street improvements,

Debt service requirements for the term of the issue follow:

Fiscat Total
Year Principal Interest Requirement
2025 105,000 62,695 167,695
2026 115,000 39,136 174,136
2027 120,000 55,237 175,237
2028 120,000 51,169 171,169
2029 120.0C0 47,101 167,101
2030 130,660 43,033 173,033
2031 135,000 38,626 173,626
2032 140,000 34,050 174,050
2033 145,000 29,304 174,304
2034 115,000 56,997 171,997
2035 120,000 47.214 167,214
2036 135,000 37.005 172,005
2037 145,000 25,521 170,521
2038 155000 13,186 168,186
$ 1,800,000 § 600274 $2.400,274
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NOTE H - CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT - (Continted)

$1,520,000
Combination Tax and Subordinate Lien Revenue
Certificates of Obligation, Series 2020

During the year ended September 30, 2020, the City issued $1,520,000 Combination Tax
Subordinate Line Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2020, for water system
improvements. These certificates of obligation bear varying interest rates beginning with 0.08%
and increasing to 1.33%. The first payment of $70,000 plus interest was made on March 31, 2021,
Interest is payable semi-annually on April 1 and October 1. Principal payment are due onn April i
annually, ad valorem taxes are pledged as security for this issue.

Fiscal Total
Year Principal Interest Requirement
2025 75,0600 10,016 85,016
2026 75,000 10,017 85,017
2027 75,000 9,956 84,956
2028 75,000 9,769 84,769
2029 75,000 4,492 84,492
2030 75,000 9,109 84,109
2031 75,000 8,614 83,614
2032 75.000 8,037 £3,037
2033 75,000 7.369 82,369
2034 75,000 6,626 £1,626
2035 75,000 5.824 80,824
2036 80,000 4,984 84,984
2037 ' 80,000 4,048 84,048
2038 80.000 3,088 83,088
2039 80,000 2,096 82,096
2040 80,000 1,064 §1.064
$ 1,225,000 $ 110,109 $ 1,335,109
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$337,000
Combination Tax and Subordinate Lien Revenue
Certificates of Obligation, Taxable Series 2021
During the year ended September 30, 2021, the City issued $337,000 Combination Tax and
Subordinate Lien Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2021. These certificates of obligation

bear no interest rates.

Debt service requitements for the term of the issue follow:

Fiscal Total
Year Principal Insterest Requirement
2025 11,000 - 11,000
2026 11,000 - 11,000
2027 11,000 - 11,000
2028 11,000 - 11,000
2029 11,000 - 11,000
2030 11,000 - 11,000
2031 11,000 - 11,000
2032 11,000 - 11,000
2033 11,000 - 11,000
2034 11,000 - 11,000
2035 11,000 - 11,000
2036 11,000 - 11,000
2037 11,000 - 11,000
2038 11,000 - 11,000
2039 11,000 - 11,000
2040 11,000 - 11,000
2041 11,000 - 11,000
2042 £1,000 - 11,000
2043 11,000 - 11,000
2044 11,000 - 11,000
2045 12,000 - 12,000
2040 12,000 - 12,000
2047 12,000 - 12,000
2048 12,000 - 12,000
2049 12,000 - 12,000
2050 12,600 - 12,000
2051 12,600 - 12,000
3 304,000 5 - $ 304,000
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NOTE H - CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT — (Continued)
$2,491,000
Combination Tax and Subordinate Lien Revenue
Certificates of Obligation, Taxable Series 2022
During the year ended September 30, 2022, the City issued $2,491,000 Combination Tax and
Subordinate Lien Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2022, These certificates of obligation

bear varying interest rates beginning with 0.24% and increasing to 0.58%.

Debt service requirements for the term of the issue follow:

Fiscal Total
Year Principal Interest Requirement
2025 121,000 9,738 130,738
2026 122,000 0424 131,424
2027 122,000 9,082 131,082
2028 122,000 8,716 130,716
2029 123,000 8,326 131,326
2030 123,000 7.883 130,883
2031 123,000 7,428 130,428
2032 124,000 6.960 130,960
2033 124,000 6,464 130,464
2034 125,000 5.944 130,944
2035 126,000 5,381 131,381
2036 126,000 4,776 130,776
2037 126,000 4,171 130,171
2038 126,000 3,529 129,529
2039 127,000 2 886 129,886
2040 128,000 2,200 130,200
2041 128,000 1,484 129,484
2042 130,000 754 130,754
$ 2.246,000 § 105,146 $ 2351146
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NOTE H — CHANGLES IN LONG-TERM DEBT — (Continued)
Debt Service Requirements

For the Next Five Fiscal Years
And Through Final Payments

Fiscal Total
Year Principal Interest Requirement
2025 1,091,311 286,813 1,378,124
2026 1,140,376 249.362 1,389,738
2027 1,168,527 220,144 1,388,671
2028-2031 3,695,422 600,464 4,295,886
2032-2036 3,144,036 344,600 3,488,636
2037-2051 1.757.012 64,027 1,821,039
$11,996,684 $ 1765411 $ 13,762,095

The City accounts for short-term loans through the appropriate fund,
At September 30, 2024, there were no short-term loans payable.
NOTE I-SUPPLEMENTAL DEATH BENEEIT FUND

The City participates in the cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit group-term life
insurance plan operated by the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) known as the
Supplemental Death Benefits Fund (SDBT). The City elected, by ordinance, to provide group-term
life insurance coverage to both current and retired employees. The City may terminate coverage
under and discontinue participation in the SDBF by adopting an ordinance before November 1 of
any year to be effective the following January 1,

The death benefit for active employees provides a lump-sum payment approximately equal to the
employee’s annual salary (calculated based on the employee’s actual earnings, for the 12-month
period preceding the month of death); retired employees are insured for $7,500; this coverage is
an “other postemployment benefit”, or OPEB.

The City contributes to the SDBF at a contractually required rate as determined by an annual
actuatial valuation. The rate is equal to the cost of providing one-year term life insurance. The
funding policy for the SDBF program is to assure that adequate resources are available to meet all
death benefit payments for the upcoming year; the intent is not to pre-fund retiree term life
insurance during employees’ entire careers.
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As of December 31, 2023, the following employees were covered by the benefits terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries carrently receiving benefits 35
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 10
Active employees : 68

113

Schedule of Contribution Rates
(Retiree-Only Portion of the Rate for OPEB)

Plan/Calendar Total SDB Retiree Portion of SDB
Year Contribution (Rate)  Contribution (Rate)
2024 0.44% 0.25%

2023 0.40% 0.22%
2022 0.37% 0.29%
2021 0.47% 0.38%
2020 0.26% 0.14%

GASB 75 required employers to recognize the total OPEB liability and the OPEB expense on their
financial statements. The OPEB expense recognized each {iscal year is equal to the change in the
total OPEB liability from the beginning of the year to the end of the year, adjusted for deferred
recognition of certain changes in the liability. An irrevocable trust has not been established that
meets the criteria of GASB Statements No. 75. Therefore, the plan is not accounted for as a trust
fund. The plan does not issue a separate financial report.

The benefits levels and contribution rate are approved annually by the city management and the
Commission as part of the budget process. By the City not contributing anything toward this plan
in advance, the City employs a pay-as-you-go method through ensuring the annual retiree
confribution are equal to the benefits that are paid on behalf of the retirees. OPEB expenses as
actuarially determined for the city was $6,255.
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Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Significant methods and assumptions used in the Decembet 31, 2023, actuarial valuation are as
folows:

Inflation 2.50%

Salary increases 3.60% to 11,85% including inflation

Discaunt rate ® 3,77%

Relirees’ share of bepefltrelated costs $0

Administrative expenses All administrative expenses are paid thiough the Pension Trust
and accoupded for under reposting requirements of GASB
Statement No. 68.

Mortality rates —service retivees 2019 Muntcipal fetirees of Texas Mortality Tables, Male rates are

multiplied by 103% and female rates are multiplted by 105%. The
rates are projected on a fully generational basis by the most
recent Scale MP-2021 {with Immediate convergence}.

Mortality rates - disabled retirees 2019 Municipal Retirees of Texas Mortality Tables with a 4 year set-
forward for males and a 3 year set-forward for females, In
addition, a 3.5% and 3% minlmum mortality rate will be applied to
reficct the impairment for younger members who become
disabled for males and females, respectively. The rates are
projecled on a fully generational basls by the most recent Scale
MP-2021 (with Immedlate convergenice) to account for future
mortality improvements subject to the floor,

*The discount rate was based on the Fidelity Index's “20-Year Municipal GO AA Index” rate as of December
31, 2023,

Note: The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2023 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period ending December 31, 2022,

These assumptions are estimated of future experience with respect to rates of mortality, disability,
turnover, retirement, rate or rates of investment income and compensation increases. Actuarial
assumptions are generally based on past experience, often modified for projected changes in
conditions. Economic assumptions (compensation increases, payroll growth, inflation and
investment return) consist of an underlying real rate of return phis an assumption for a long-term
average rate of inflation. The actuarial valuation report determines, as of the actuarial valuation
date, the service cost, total OPEB liability, and related actuarial present value of projected benefits.

Total OPEB Liability

The total OPEB liability of $212,797 (City) was measured as of December 31, 2023, and was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of the date.
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NOTE I - SUPPLEMENTAL DEATH BENEFIT FUND — (Confinted)

The total OPEB liability and related information are as follows for the City as December 31, 2023

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability

Total OPEB Liahility — beginning of year $ 199,685

Changes for the year
Service Cost 6,952
Interest on Total OPEB Liabllity 8,113
Changes of henefit terms Including TMRS plan participation 0
Differences between expected and actual experience (3,559)
Changes in assumptions or other inputs 7,270
Benefit payments ** (5,664)

Nel changes 13,112

Total OPEB Liability —end of year S 212,797
OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources Related to OPEB:

For the year ended September 30, 2024, the City recognized OPEB expenses of $6,255,

Saivice cost S 5,952
interest on total OPEB liability 8,113
Changes in benefit terms including TMRS plan participation 0
Employer administrative casts 0
Recognition of deferred outllows/inflows of resources:

Differences between expected and actual experience {6,875)

Changes In assumptions or other inputs * {1,935)
Total OPER expense s 6,255

1, Generally, this will only be the annual change In the munlcipal bond Index rate. However, for this valuation, the
changes In assumption also include the changes In the actuarial assumptions adopted in 2023.

The City includes contributions made subsequent to the measurement date (12/31/2023) through
the City’s fiscal year end (9/30/2024) as deferred outflows resources.
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NOTE I - SUPPLEMENTAL DEATH BENEFIT FUND — (Continued)

Other amounts to reported as deferred outflow related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB
expense as follow:

Net Deferred Outfiows/
(Infiows) of Resaurces

20724 3 {9,896)
2025 {13,988)
2026 {15,012)
2027 6,750}
2028 n
Thereafter 0
Total $ {45,575)

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the total OPEB Liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of
3.77% as well as what the City’s total OPEB liability would be if it were caiculated using a
discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower 2.77% or 1-percentage-point higher 4.77% than the
current discount rate:

1% Decrease Current Discount Rate 1% Increase
2,77% 3.727% 4.77%
Total OPEB liability $249,018 $212,797 $183,657

NOTE J - PENSION BENEFIT PLAN
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Pensions. For purposes of measuring the net pension liability/asset, deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to pension, and pension expense, information about the
Fiduciary Net Position of the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) and additions
to/deductions from TMRS’s Fiduciary Net Position have been determined on the same basis as
they are reported by TMRS. For this purpose, plan contributions are recognized in the period that
compensation is reported for the employee, which is when contributions are legally due. Benefit
payments and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
Investments are reported at fair value.
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CITY OF RAYMONDVILLE, TEXAS
NOTLES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

NOTE J - PENSION BENEFIT PLAN — (Continued)
Defined Benefil Pension Plans
1. Plan Description

The City of Raymondpville participates as one of 860 plans in the nontraditional, joint contributory,
hybrid defined benefit pension plan administered by the Texas Municipal Retirement System
(TMRS). TMRS is an agency created by the State of Texas and administered in accordance with
the TMRS Act, Subtitle G, Title 8, Texas Government Code (the TMRS Act) as an agent multiple-
employer retirement system for municipal employees in the State of Texas. The TMRS Act places
the general administration and management of the System with a six-member Board of Trustees.
Although the Governor, with the advice and consent of the Senate, appoints the Board, TMRS is
not fiscally dependent on the State of Texas, TMRS’s defined benefit pension plan is a tax-
qualified plan under Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. TMRS issues a publicly
available comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) that can be obtained at www.tmrs.com.

All eligible employees of the city are required to participate in TMRS.
2. Benefits Provided

TMRS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Benefit provisions are adopted by the
governing body of the city, within the options available in the state statutes governing TMRS.

At retirement, the benefit is calculated as if the sum of the employee’s contributions, with interest,
and the city-financed monetary credits with interest were used to purchase an annuity. Members
may choose to receive their retirement benefit in one of seven payments options. Members may
also choose to receive a portion of their benefit as a Partial Lump Sum Distribution in an amount
equal to 12, 24, or 36 monthly payments, which cannot exceed 75% of the member’s deposits and
interest.

Employees covered by benefit terms.

Atthe December 31, 2022 valuation and measurement date, the following employees wete covered
by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently recetving benefits 52
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 43
Active employees 68

163

3. Confributions

The contribution rates for employees in TMRS are either 5%, 6%, or 7% of employees gross
earnings, and the city matching percentages are either 100%, 150%, or 200%, both as adopted by
the governing body of the City. Under the state law governing TMRS, the contribution rate for

47




CITY OF RAYMONDVILLE, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

NOTE J - PENSION BENEFIT PLAN — (Confinued)

each city is determined annually by the actuary, using the Entry Age Normal (EAN) actuarial cost
method. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the cost of
benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded
accrued liability.

Employees for the City of Raymondville were required to contribute 7.00% of their annual gross
earnings during the fiscal year. The contribution rates for the City of Raymondville were 1.24%
and 1.24% in calendar year 2023 and 2022, respectively. The city’s contributions to TMRS for the
year ended September 30, 2024, were $39,698.

4. Net Pension Liability

The city’s Net Pension Asset (NPA) was measured as of December 31, 2023, and the Total Pension
Liability (TPL) used to calculate the Net Pension Asset was determined by an actuarial valuation
as of that date.

Actuarial Assumptions

The Total Pension Liability in the December 31, 2023 actuarial valuation was determined using
the following actuarial assumptions:

Inflation 2.50% per year
Overall payroll growth 3.60% to 11.85% inchulding inflation

Tnvestment Rate of Return 6.75%

Salary increases were based on a service-related table. Mortality rates for active members, retirees,
and beneficiaries were based on the gender-distinct RP2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Table,
with male rates multiplied by 109% and female rate multiplied by 103%. The rates are projected
on a fully generational basis by scale BB to account for future mortality improvements. For
disabled annuitants, the gender-distinct RP2000 Disabled Retiree Mortality Table is used, with
stight adjustments.

Actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2023, valuation were based on the resuits of
actuarial expetience studies. The experience study in TMRS was for the period January 1, 2010,
through December 31, 2014, first used in the December 31, 2015, valuation. Healthy post-
retitement mortality rates and annuity purchase rates were updated based on Mortality Experience
Investigation Study covering 2009 through 2011 and dated December 31, 2013. These assumptions
were first used in the December 31, 2013, valuation, along with a change to the Entry Age Normal
(EAN) actuarial cost method. Assumptions are reviewed annually. No additional changes were
made for the 2015 valuation.
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NOTE J - PENSION BENEFIT PLAN ~ (Confinued)

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments is 6.75%. The pension plan’s
policy in regard to the allocation of invested assets is established and may be amended by the
TMRS Board of Trustees. Plan assets are managed on a fotal return basis with an emphasis on both
capital appreciation as well as the production of income, in order fo satisfy the short-term and long-
term funding needs of TMRS.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the Total Pension Liability was 6.75%. The projection of cash
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee and employer contributions will
be made at the rate specified in statute. Based on that assumption, the pension plan’s Fiduciary
Net Position was projected to be available to male all projected future benefit payments of current
active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was applied to all period of projected benefit payments to determine the Total Pension
Liability.

Changes in the Net Pension Liability Tucrease (Decrease)
Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liability
{a) () (a)-()
Balatce at 12/31/2022 $ 9,246,747 $ 10,411,589 5 (1.164.842)
Changes for the vear:
Service cost $ 296,604 K] 296,604
Interest 609,741 609,741
Change of benefit tarms
Difference between expected and
actual experience (173.886) (173,886)
Changes in assumptions (107,724) (107,724)
Contributions-employer 43,512 (43,512
Contributions-employee 180,228 (180,228)
Net investment income 1,201,500 {1,201,500)
Benefit payments, including refunds
of employee contributions {723,707 {723,707 -
Administrative expense (7.666) 7,666
Other changes {54) 54
Net changes 3 (9897 3 693,813 $ (792,785)
Balance at 12/31/2023 § 9,147,775 $ 11,185.401 $ (1,957,628)

Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate.

The following present the net pension liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of
6.75%, as well as what the City’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a
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NOTE J—-PENSION BENEFIT PLAN — (Coutinued)

discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (5.75%) or 1-percentage-point higher (7.75%j than
the current rate:

1% Decrease in Discount 1% Increase in
Discommnt Rate Rate Discount Rate
5.715% 6.75% 7.75%

City's net pension liability §  (750,558) $ (1,957.628) $ (2,954,059

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s Fiduciary Net Position is available in a separately
issued TMRS financial report. That report may be obtained on the internet at www,tmrs,com.

5. Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related fo Pensions

For the ended September 30, 2024, the city recognized pension income of $178,645.

At September 30, 2024, the city reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Onitflows Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Change in assumphions $ - $ 48454
Differences between expected and
achuat experience - 80,997
Difference between projected and
actual eamings 183,913 -
Contributions subsequent io the
measurement date 27157 -
Total § 211,071 $ 129450

$27,157 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability
for the year ending September 30, 2025, Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows
of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:
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NOTE J - PENSION BENEFIT PLAN — (Continued)

Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of resources by year to be recognized in future pension
expense as follows:

Net Defetred Outflows/
(Inflows) of Resources
2024 (7.842)
2025 15,505
2026 179.150
2027 (99,742)
2028 -
Thetreafter .
Total $ 87.071

NOTE K - PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

The City had to record a prior period adjustment to adjust the beginning balances due to
unrecorded adjusting entries from the previous year. The prior period adjustment is as follows:

2024
Governmental Activities $ (127.183)
Business-Type Activities 50,592

Total prior period adjustment § (76.591)

NOTE L — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events have been evaluated through April 7, 2025, which is the date the financial
statements were available fo be issued. Events occurring after that date have not been evaluated to
determine whether a change in the financial statements would be required.
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CITY OF RAYMONDVILLE, TEXAS
TEXAS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM
Pension Information

SCHEDULE OF PENSION EXPENSE

. Total Service Cost

. Interest on the Total Pension Liability

. Current Period Benefit Changes

. Employee Contributions (Reduction of Expense)

. Projected Earnings on Plan Investments (Reduction of Expense)

. Administrative Expense

. Other changes in Fiduciary Net Position

. Recognition of Current Year Outflow (Infiow) of Resources-Liabilities
9. Recognition of Current Year Outflow (Inflow) of Resources-Assets

10. Amortization of Prior Year Qutflows (Inflows) of Resources- Liabilities
1. Amortization of Prior Year Outflows (Inflows) of Resources-Assels
12, Total Pension Expense (lucome)

- = ULV T CRRL O I 6 ]
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$

296,604
609,741
(180,228)
(702,782)

7,666

54
(79,105)
(99,744)
(53,280)

22,429

(178,645)




CITY OF RAYMONDVILLE, TEXAS
TEXAS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM
Pension Information

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

CURRENT PERIOD

A. Total Pension Liabilify
1, Service Cost b 296,604
2. Interest (on the Total Pension Liability) 609,741
3. Changes of benefit terms -
4. Difference between expecied and actual experience (173,886}
5. Changes in assumptions (107,724)
6. Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions (723,707
7. Net change in total pension liability $ (98,9723
8. Total pension Hability - beginning 9,246,747
9. Total pension liability - ending 3 9,147,775

B. Plan Fiduciary Net Position
1. Contributions - employer $ 43,512
2. Contributions - employee 180,228
3. Net investment income 1,201,500
4. Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions {723,707)
5. Administrative expense (7,666)
6. Other (54)
7. Net change in plan fiduciary net position $ 693,814
8, Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 10,411,589
9. Plan fiduciary net position - ending $ 11,105,403

C. Net Pension Liability/(Asset) (A.9 - B.9) ¥ (1,957,628)

D. Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage
of the Total Penston Liability (B.9/A.9) 121.40%

E. Covered-Employee Payroli $ 2,574,687

I. Net Pension Liability/(Asset) as a Percentage
of Covered Employee Payroll (76.03%)
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Actuarially determined
confribution

Actual employee
contributions

Contribution deficiency
{excess)

Covered employee
payroll

Contributions as a

percentage of covered
employee payroll

Valuation Date;

CITY OF RAYMONDVILLE, TEXAS
TEXAS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
$ 43,512 % 46,858 % 55471 § 24226 § 34,021 § IS8 37,540
$ 43512 % 46,898 § 55471 % 24,226 % 34,021 8 38115 § 37540
$ - 3 - $ - $ - $ - b} - $ -
$ 2,574,687 0§ 2,634,705 § 2,544,549  § 2472033 § 2314411 5 2,145,131 § 2,097222
1.69% [.78% 2.18% 1.00% 1.47% 1.78% 1.79%
NOTES TO SCHEDULE

Actuariafly determined contribution rates are calculates each December 31,
and become effective in January, 13 months later.

Methods and Assumpiions Used te Delermine Contribution Rates:

Actuarial Cost Method:
Amortizartion Method:

Remaining Amortization
Period:

Asset Valuation Method:
Inflation:

Salary Increases:

Investment Rate ol Return:

Retirement Age:

Mortality:

Cther lntormation:

Eniry Age (level percentage ol pay)

Level percentage of payroll, closed

N/A
10 years smoothed markel; 12% soft corrider
2.5%

3.60% to 11.85% inciuding inflation

Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the City's plan of
benefits. Last updated for the 2023 valuation pursuant to an experience
study of the period ending 2022,

Post-retirement: 2019 Municipal Retirees of Texas Mortality Tables

The rates are projected on a fully generational basis with scale MP-2021.
Pre-refirement: PUM(10) mortality tables, with the Public Safety

{able used for males and the General Employee table used for females,
The rates are projected on a fully generational basis with scale MP-202L

There were no benefif changes during the year.
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CITY OF RAYMONDVILLE, TEXAS
SCHEDULLE OF CHANGES IN THE TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
TEXAS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM

SEPTEMBER 30, 2024
FY 2024 FY 2023 FY 2022
Plan Year 2023 Plan Year 2022 Plan Year 2021
Total GPEB Liability
Service Cost $ 5,952 $ 13,437 $ 12,468
Interest on the Total OPEB Liability 8,113 5,128 5,336
Changes of Benefit Terms - - -
Difterence between Expected and Actual Experience {3,559 ) 2,167 (5,520
Changes of Assumptions 7,270 (80,8053 7,762
Benelit Payments** {5,604) {7,641) {9,669)
Net Change in Total OPEB Liability 13,112 {76,114y 10,377
Total OPEB Liability - Beginning 199,685 275,799 265,422
Total OPEB Liability - Ending $ 212,797 $ 199,685 § 275,799
Covered Payroll $ 2,574,687 $ 2,634,705 $ 2,544,549
Total OPEB Liability as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 8.26% 7.58% 10.84%

¥+ Due fo the SDBE being considered an unfinded OPEB plan under GASB 75, benefit payments are treated as being equal
to the employer's yearly contributions for retirees.

Note: GASB Codification, Vol. 2, P52. 139 states thal the information on this schedwle should be determined as of the
measurement date of the plan.

As required by GASB 735, this schedule will be built prospectively as the iiformation becomes available uniil 10 years of
information is presented,
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CITY OF RAYMONDVILLE, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND
Tor the year ended September 30, 2024

REVENUESANCOME

Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeits
Other revenues
Total revenues/income

EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES

Current:

Generat government
Pubtic safety
Highways and streets
Sanitation
Cuiture and recreation
Pension
Capital Qutlay

Tetal expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out
Totat other [inancing sovrces {uses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
and offier sources over expendilures
and other uses

Fund balances/net position:
Beginning of the year

End of the year

Original
& Fingl Actual Variance with
Budgel Amounts Budget
3 3,440,574 5 3,441,812 $ 1,238
25,000 49,313 24,313
847,750 838,917 (8,833)
23,0060 11,942 (£1,058)
165,000 306,141 141,141
4,501,324 4,648,126 5,001
821,306 815,919 11,387
2,285,575 1,229,206 1,056,369
688,500 690,684 {2,178)
726,000 665,679 60,321
520,639 676,154 {155,515}
- 34,093 (34,093)
5,048,026 4,111,735 930,291
(546,702} 536,391 941,952
224,000 B 224,000
- (134,178) (134,178)
224,000 (134,178) 89,822
{322,702) 402,213 1,031,774
1,398,160 1,398,166 -
$ 976,762 3 1,800,375 3 823,613
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ROBERTO LOPEZ

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT, PC

MEMBER OF TEXAS SOCIETY OF 913 E HARRISON AVE., SUITE 18

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS HARLINGEN, TX 78880
MEMBER OF AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF PHONE: 9B6425-9020
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACGOUNTANTS 'FAX: 9864259077

EMAIL: roberie lonezirobertolopezepa.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING
STANDARDS

Independent Auditor’s Report

Honorable Gilbert Gonzales, Major
Members of the Board of Commissioners
City of Raymendville, Texas

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the City of Raymondville, Texas, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2024 and the related notes
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of Raymondville, Texas’s basic financial
statements and have issued our report thereon dated April 7, 2025.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of Raymondville,
Texas’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness the City of Raymondville,
Texas’ internal control, Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of
Raymondville, Texas’ internal control.

A deficiency in infernal conirol exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements, on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal confrol that might be material
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
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deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified,

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Raymondville, Texas’ financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncempliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal controf and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Robento Lopey

Roberto Lopez, CPA PCs
Harlingen Texas

April 7, 2025
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT, PC

\

MEMBER OF TEXAS SOGIETY OF 913 E HARRISON AVE,, SUITE 18
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS HARLINGEN, TX 78500
MEMBER OF AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF PHONE: 966-425-9020
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS FAX: 85642509077

EMalL: rebhertoloperi@robertolopezepa.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM
GUIDANCE

Honorable Gilbert Gonzales, Major
Members of the Board of Commissioners
City of Raymondyville, Texas

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the City of Raymondville, Texas’ compliance with the types of compliance requirements
identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material
effect on each of the City of Raymondville, Texas’ major federal programs for the year ended September
30, 2024. The City of Raymondville, Texas® major federal programs are identified in the summary of
auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, the City of Raymondville, Texas complied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referved to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2024,

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Progran

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibiiities under those standards
and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the City of Raymondville, Texas and to meet out other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on
compliance for each major federai program, Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City
of Raymondville, Texas’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of
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laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the City of
Raymondville, Texas® federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance
14 p

Our objectives are fo obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above oceurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion
on the City of Raymondville, Texas’ compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform
Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material
noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user of the report on compliance about the City of Raymondville, Texas’s compliance with the
requirements of each major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Govermment Auditing
Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

* Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or errer, and design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the City of Raymondvitle, Texas’ compliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary
in the circumstances.

+ Obtain an understanding of the City of Raymondyville, Texas’ internal control over compliance
relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
and to test and report on internal confrol over compliance in accordance with the Uniform
Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of
Raymondville, Texas’ internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal
control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonabie
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis, A significant deficiency in internal control
over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal contro] over compliance with
a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to metit attention by those charged with
governance.
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Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit, we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we considered to be material weaknesses,
as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over
compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control
over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed,

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Rabente Logey

Roberto Lopez, CPA PCs
Harlingen Texas

April 7, 2025
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CITY OF RAYMONDVILLE, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COST
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Summary of the Auditor’s Results:
Financial Section:

a. The type of report issued =--sm-mmsmmmmmmmmmmm e oo Unmodified
b. Internal Control Over Financial Reporting:
Material weaknesses identified=---====m=mm=mmmmmmemmmm e No

Significant deficiencies identified which
Were not considered material weaknessg--«-ww=sm=mmmmmmmzmmmmrmn No
¢. Noncompliance material to the financial statements noted-------==rmmmnmmmaemax No

Federal Awards Section

d. The type of report the auditor issued on compliance

fOr MAjOr PrOGIAIN§= mr=n=mmnmnm s oo Unmodified
e. Internal Control Over Major Programs:
Material Weakness{es) Identified?------mmmmmmmmmmmsmm e No

Significant Deficiency(ies) identified which

Were not considered material weaknesses ?-—-mmmmmmmmacmm s No
. Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance?---—sssenammsommmam amm e ceeee No

g. ldentification of Major Programs:

Assistance Listing Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster
66.202 Environmental  Protection  Agency/Texas
Water Development Board
21.027 Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery

h. Dollar threshold to distinguished between type A and type B programs: $750,000

i. Auditee qualifies as a Jow-risk AUAIEE==m=mmmmmmmmmmr e s oo No
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CITY OF RAYMONDYVILLE, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COST
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

11. Tindings Relating to the Financial Statements Audit as Required to be Reported
in Accordance with Generally Accepted Government Auditing Standards.

Noue Reported

11, Tindings Related to Federal Awards

Neone Reported
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CITY OF RAYMONDVILLE, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF STATUS OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 306, 2024

2023-001:; City Accounting (Material Weakness in Internal Control)

Criteria;

The City’s accounting and financial reporting process should involve procedures to
incorporate all aspects of the City’s finances and reflect all activity of the City’s funds
in the proper classification and in accordance with accounting standards generally

accepted in the United States of America applicable to state and local governments
(GAAP). '

Condition:

In conducting the audit of the City of Raymondville, Texas, a large number of adjusting
entries, both provided by the City and identified during the audit process, were required
to properly state account balances and reconcile general ledger balances with subsidiary
support or other evidence. In addition, it was noted that the cash bank reconciliations
were not prepared in a timely manner. The bank accounts were not reconciled until
September 2024,

Cause:
The City’s accounting, which includes bank reconciliations, was not monitored due to
turnover in personnel,

Effect:

Due to the issues described above, the City failed to submit their single audit to the
Federal Clearinghouse (FAC) in a timely manner. Tn addition, the unreconciled bank
reconciliations present a significant deficiency in controls over the accounting process.
This increases the risk that the financial statements can be materially misstated,
including interim financial information that is reported throughout the fiscal year.

Recommendation:

Management and finance personnel should review financial records throughout the
year and make adjustment as necessary. In addition, we recommend that the City
establish time periods for performing bank reconciliations and monitor the process to
ensure accounts are reconciled timely,

Corrective Action:

The City has established policies and procedures to improve the overall accounting
process, To include monthly preparation of bank reconciliation, posting transactions,
posting adjusting entries and review of financial statements, The City has also hired an
experienced accountant to assist in implementing these policies and procedures.

Auditor’s Comments: Cleared.
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Cify of Raymondviile
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards By Grant
for the Year Ended Septeriber 30, 2024

Federal Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Federal ALN Pass-through Grantor and Number Federal
Number Expenditires($)

Department of Homeland Security

Hemeland Secusity Grant Program 97.067 Office of the Govemnor, 3248807 % 50,095
Total Department of Homeland Security 50,005
United States Departinent of Justice

Crime Victim Assistance 16.575 Office of the Governor,3372604 43,592

Totat Crime Victin Assistance 43,592

Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Office of the Governor, 3853002, 3833004,

Program 16.738 4463001 124,709

Total Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant 124,709
Total United States Departiment of Justice 168,301

United States Environmental Protection Ageney

Congressicnally Mandated Projects (l.oan} 66.202 Office of Governor, LF10061142 626,229
Total Congressionally Mandated Projects 626,229
Clean Water State Revolving Fund

Clean Water State Revolving Fund 66458 Office of Governor LF1001156, LF1G01498 98,384
Total Clzan Water State Revolving Fund 98,384

Total United States Environmental Protection Agency : 724,613

Department of Housing and Urban Development
GLO Commuaity Development Block
GL_Drainage 14.228 Grant,18-405-5000-B114 74,410

Total GL_Draainage 74,410
Home Investment Partnerships Program
Home Investment Partnership Program,M-19-

Home Investment Parinerships Program 14,239 SG-48-0100 50,747
Total Home Investment Parinerships Program 50,747
Total Depariment of Housiug and Urban Development 125,157

Department of the Treasury

Total CORONAVIRUS STATE AND LOCAL FISCAL Texas Department of Emergency
RECOVERY FUNDS 21027 Management, TX-21-054 206,255
Totul Depariment of the Treasury 206,253
Total Expenditures af Federal Awards S 1,274,421

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule
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CITY OF RAYMONDVILLE, TEXAS
NOTES ON ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the “Schedule”) includes the
federal grant activity of the City of Raymondville, Texas. The information in the schedule is
presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR)
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principle, and Audit Requirement for
Federal Awards (“Uniform Guidance™). Therefore, some amounts may differ from amounts
presented in, or used in, the preparation of the basic financial statements.

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting,
These expenditures are recognized according to the cost principles contained in the Uniform
Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to
reimbursement.

Indirect Cost Rate

The city has elected not to use the [0 percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the
Uniform Guidance.

Federal Loans and Loan Guarantees

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2020, the city received a loan from the Environmental
Protection Agency through Congressionally Mandated Projects for water system improvements in
the amount of $1,520,000. The ALN is 66.202. There are no continuing compliance requirements,

Sub-Recipients
During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2024, the city did not have any sub-recipients.
Federal Funded Insurance

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2024, the city had no outstanding federal funded
insurance.

Noncash Awards

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2024, the city had no outstanding noncash awards.
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